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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
Dear Colleagues and Esteemed Shareholders
On behalf of the Board of Directors of Abu Dhabi National Hotels
and all our shareholders, please allow me to express our sincere
gratitude to H.H Sheikh Khalifa Bin Zayed Al Nahyan, President of
the United Arab Emirates, H.H. General Sheikh Mohammed Bin
Zayed Al Nahyan, the Crown Prince of Abu Dhabi and Deputy
Supreme Commander of the UAE Armed Forces and H.H. Sheikh
Mansour Bin Zayed Al Nahyan, Deputy Prime Minister and Minister
of Presidential Affairs, for their continuous support and combined
guidance which has led to a remarkable growth and standing for the
United Arab Emirates.
During the year, Abu Dhabi National Hotels’ revenue reached AED
1.13 billion with a net profit of AED 241 million reflecting a marginal
decrease by 3% in Net profit from the previous year.
Hotels division posted AED 731 million in revenues with AED
103 million of net profit, recording a decrease of 12% in net profit
as compared to the previous year due to the challenging market
conditions. Considerable cost optimization has contributed in
maintaining a profit margin of 14% of revenues.
Retail’s division posted revenue of AED 146 million in 2018 with a net
profit of AED 52 million recording a decrease of 36% in net profit as
compared to the previous year mainly due to restrictions enforced
on some outlets and the impact of 30% tourism fees imposed on
retail products in addition to the decrease in expatriates’ population,
Sheikh Saif Bin Mohammed Bin Butti Hamed AlHamed
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Outlook
We shall continue to build on our 2018 achievements, pursue
our lean approach to address operational costs, and grow our
shareholders’ intrinsic value while delivering world class guest
experience and services. The acquisition of the five hotels in Dubai
further strengthens ADNH’s leading position within hospitality
sector in the UAE.
ADNH is committed to continue their development and
improvement in Abu Dhabi Tourism sector, and I would like to
take this opportunity to thank the Department of Culture and
Tourism for its efforts in exhibiting and promoting the beauty and
the potential of the Emirates as a world class destination.
Return to Shareholders
The Board of Directors regularly reviews its distribution policy and
comprehensive financial strategy with the view of maintaining a
balance between the interests of the Company’s varied business
units, the Company meeting its debt service obligations and
the Company’s shareholders interest. We therefore, submit a
recommendation to the General Assembly for a Cash dividend
distribution of 13% of the Share Capital.
Appreciation
I would like to extend my sincere thanks and appreciation to
our Board of Directors for their dedication, commitment, and
contribution. On behalf of our Board and Shareholders, I wish to
thank the management and employees for their hard work and
efforts. Thank you all.

Al Ghazal transport revenue reached AED 287 million in 2018, with
a net profit of AED 8 million recording a decrease in net profit
of AED 10 million as compared to the previous year mainly due
to newly introduced regulatory costs and non-reimbursable VAT
expenses during 2018.
ADNH share of profit from Compass increased by AED 31 million
mainly due to the increase in revenues from governmental and other
parties’ contracts, non-recurring impact on the currency devaluation
and cost savings in supply chain and contracts management.
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ABOUT
Founded in 1976, ADNH is a shareholding company established
as a hotel owner and asset manager. It has since evolved into a
hospitality group that encompasses hotels, restaurants, catering and
transportation services. Under its Hotels Division, ADNH owns
some of the most reputable and recognizable hotels in the Emirate
and beyond: The Ritz-Carlton Abu Dhabi, Grand Canal; Park Hyatt
Abu Dhabi Hotel and Villas; Sheraton Abu Dhabi Hotel & Resort;
Le Meridien Abu Dhabi; Hilton Abu Dhabi; Hilton Al Ain; Sofitel
Dubai Jumeirah Beach.
ADNH also has a hotel operating division which manages a portfolio
of hotels and hotel apartments in prime city locations under the
umbrella of Al Diar Hotels brand. The group’s restaurants division
is represented by the collection of innovative food and beverage
concepts under the umbrella of the Venetian Village, wherein
franchises of internationally acclaimed restaurant brands are
operated in an exclusive setting within the grounds of The RitzCarlton Abu Dhabi, Grand Canal.
Al Ghazal Transport and ADNH Compass are ADNH’s other
business divisions that complete the hospitality services of the
group. Initially created as support services for the hotel network,
these business divisions have grown organically into independent,
profitable ventures.
Owned Hotels
Under its Hotels Division, ADNH owns some of the most reputable
and recognizable hospitality assets in the United Arab Emirates.
The Ritz-Carlton Abu Dhabi, Grand Canal
Set against the backdrop of the majestic Sheikh Zayed Grand Mosque
and overlooking Al Maqta creek, this luxurious hotel opened in
March 2013. Offering 532 rooms, suites and villas and an exquisite
hospitality experience, this opulent property is spread across 57
acres. This Venetian-inspired property has established itself as a
micro-destination in Abu Dhabi, offering exquisite dining options
and enticing recreational facilities nestled by carefully manicured
gardens and adorned by artfully designed water features.
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The Park Hyatt Abu Dhabi, Hotel and Villas
The Park Hyatt Abu Dhabi Hotel and Villas, opened in November
2011, is an exclusive sanctuary for discerning business and leisure
travelers. Nestled on the pristine and environmentally protected
beach of Saadiyat Island, this spectacular resort is adjacent to the
famous Saadiyat Beach Golf Club and close to the iconic architectural
masterpieces such as Louvre Abu Dhabi and upcoming Zayed
National Museum and Guggenheim Abu Dhabi.
The hotel offers 306 luxurious guest rooms, stylish suites and private
villas featuring outdoor plunge pools with magnificent ocean and
garden views. A selection of elegant contemporary restaurants and
lounges offering an array of authentic dining experiences. Enviable
recreational spa facilities include an award winning tennis court,
infinity pool and private beach. For the explorer, discover the natural
beauty of the indigenous wildlife through nature trails, bespoke tours
of the mangroves and the nesting sites of the protected hawksbill
turtles.
Sofitel Dubai Jumeirah Beach
Sofitel Dubai Jumeirah Beach is a luxury five star hotel located
in Jumeirah Beach Residence (JBR) on The Walk and The Beach.
Featuring 438 elegant rooms and suites with views over the Arabian
Gulf, four restaurants and bars, a dedicated Magnifique Meetings
floor, sea-view pool, SoFIT health club with sauna and steam rooms.
The hotel opened in December 2009.
Sheraton Abu Dhabi Hotel & Resort
Sheraton Abu Dhabi Hotel & Resort is ideally situated on the
Corniche in the heart of the UAE’s capital. With a total of 272 rooms
and 3 club floors, the hotel is the ideal destination for every occasion.
You can taste beautiful Italian dishes in La Mamma, add a Mexican
twist to your night in El Sombrero or enjoy tasty Spanish tapas in
Bravo. Guests can relax on a sandy lagoon or by the outdoor pools,
rejuvenate with a massage or just enjoy a drink at the pool bar. A
state-of-the-art fitness center offers cardio equipments and weights,
squash and tennis courts plus jacuzzi, sauna and steam room.

Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC
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Le Méridien Abu Dhabi
Inaugurated in 1979 by His Highness, the late Sheikh Zayed Al
Nahyan and Her Majesty, Queen Elisabeth II, Le Méridien Abu Dhabi
is one of Abu Dhabi’s original urban resorts, welcoming guests for
four decades. Arranged over 5 floors, the hotel has 248 rooms
and suites with lush gardens and a private -200m beach, making it
an ideal destination for every guest. Eden Spa & Health Club will
spoil you with its recreation & rejuvenation facilities - a blend of
health, fitness and fun. In the heart of the hotel lies The Village which
brings the world to your plate as it offers a unique mix of themed
restaurants, lounges and bars along with live entertainment - the
only one of its kind in Abu Dhabi.

Food and Beverage Ventures: The Venetian Village
The Venetian Village is Abu Dhabi’s newest dining destination and
reflects ADNH’s vision to become a leading food and beverage
player in Abu Dhabi and beyond, perceiving innovative culinary
concepts as essential components in enhancing the offering of any
tourist destination. Located within the grounds of The Ritz-Carlton
Abu Dhabi, Grand Canal, the Venetian Village brings together a
collection of Internationally acclaimed artisan restaurants offering
exquisite cuisines from around the world. Al Fanar restaurant
offers an authentic Emirati dining experience while Kaizan serves
traditional robata-yaki Japanese dishes. La Brasserie welcomes guests
to a casual French dining experience while Todd English’s Olives
restaurant brings in not only the beloved Italian and Mediterranean
tastes, but also a celebrity chef name which is a valuable accolade
to the city dining landscape. Punjab Grill showcases an exquisite
Indian fine dining concept, while Barfly – developed by the Buddha
Bar creators – is the restaurant and supper club that rounds off the
offering at the Venetian Village.

Hilton Abu Dhabi
Set against the backdrop of the vibrant Corniche in the commercial
capital, Hilton Abu Dhabi is truly an iconic landmark in the city.
Hilton Abu Dhabi opened its doors in May 1973. The hotel has
326 elegant rooms. The hotel is known for its varied award winning
restaurants and bars. The Hiltonia Beach Club spreads across of
11,000 sq.m. of pristine sand, overlooking blue waters offers guests
varied recreational facilities such as swimming pools, a fitness centre,
spa and water sport activities.

Managed Hotels – the Al Diar Hotels Brand
A locally established and grown brand, Al Diar chain was founded in
1991 to capitalize on the growing potential of the tourism industry
in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi. Al Diar Hotels have since become a
network of thriving business hotels located in prime city locations
within Abu Dhabi and Fujairah. Catering primarily to business
travelers, Al Diar Hotels comprises of properties within the one
to five star categories, as well as comfortable, fully-serviced hotel
apartments.
The properties currently under the brand of Al Diar Hotels are
Al Diar Capital Hotel, Al Diar Dana Hotel, Al Diar Mina Hotel,
Al Diar Sawa Hotel Apartment and Al Diar Siji Hotel. The brand
is committed in securing and maintaining its position in the local
market.

Hilton Al Ain
Set in exotic landscaped gardens, Hilton Al Ain offers a peaceful
location in the heart of the garden city and the perfect venue
for leisure and business travelers alike. From the three swimming
pools and tennis courts, to the stylish rooms alongside a collection
of acclaimed dining venues and wide banqueting spaces, you’ll
feel worlds away from everything, yet exciting attractions are just
minutes away, including Al Ain’s magnificent sand dunes and the
nearby UNESCO World Heritage Sites.

New Acquisition
During 2018, Abu Dhabi National Hotels entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire five hotel properties in Dubai,
(Address Dubai Mall, Address Boulevard, Address Dubai Marina,
Vida Downtown and Manzil Downtown) from Emaar Hospitality
Group. The deal was successfully closed in 2019.
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The Transportation Division:
Al Ghazal Transport
Al Ghazal Transport, a subsidiary of Abu Dhabi National Hotels,
was originally formed in 1986 as the first Radio Controlled Taxi
Service in Abu Dhabi. Al Ghazal has expanded its services to meet
customer needs with Bus Transportation, Vehicle Leasing and VIP
limousines.
Al Ghazal provides transportation services to various corporate
companies, airline company, hotels, private & government bodies,
schools & colleges. In addition to over 75 limousines, Al Ghazal’s
Bus Division has a fleet of over 600 buses, the Car Rental & Leasing
Department has over 1000 latest model vehicles and a fleet of
around 1000 taxis.
Al Ghazal operates a public bus shuttle service from Al Ain to Dubai
on regular schedule 7 days a week. The modern vehicle fleet is
maintained in four fully equipped Workshops where mechanical
repair and servicing work is carried out. Services are available 24
hours, throughout the U.A.E. and include the renting & leasing (long
& short term) of all types of vehicles, including; sedans; commercial
vehicles; and all types of buses - self-drive or with a driver. Al Ghazals’
fleet is controlled by Operations Centers that book, dispatch and
monitor the services.

Catering Division: ADNH Compass
ADNH Compass is a joint venture between Abu Dhabi National
Hotels and Compass Group PLC. Compass Group, listed on the
London Stock Exchange, is the largest global company specialising in
contract catering and support services. ADNH Compass is based in
Abu Dhabi, has operations across the UAE, Qatar, and Saudi Arabia.
Employing over 25,000 people it serves 3 million meals per week
and also has a large cleaning and office services division. It’s clients
include multinationals, defence forces, police and correctional
institutions, hospitals, universities and the major national oil
companies in the region. Year on Year organic growth has been
strong and backed up by a high business retention rate. It operates
to the highest International standards with an excellent Health Safety
and Environmental focus.
ADNH Sunshine Travel & Tours
With over two decades of rich experience, Sunshine Travel and
Tours, offers encompassing travel solutions to individuals and groups.
As a subsidiary of Abu Dhabi National Hotels with such a wealth of
venues and operations, we are always ready to provide exceptional
hospitality services. As a partner of IATA, we provide access to the
world’s greatest airlines at most competitive prices. Being a partly
government owned company, we enjoy an edge that assures fast
track tour visa approvals and processing.
More than 2,900 standard rooms and executive suites, attractive
tours, 5 star desert camps and safaris, ground handling and
transportation solutions help to serve business and leisure visitors
across the UAE.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ABU
DHABI NATIONAL HOTELS PJSC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ABU DHABI NATIONAL HOTELS PJSC continued

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Abu Dhabi National Hotels PJSC (the “Company”) and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as
the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Revenue recognition
Revenue recognition is considered to be a key area of focus given there are multiple revenue streams associated with the Group which comprise a high
volume of low value transactions which come from various decentralized operational locations. In addition, there are a number of different IT systems and
applications in place for the recording of revenue transactions, many of which require manual processes to transfer data to the central finance team which
increases the risk of error while processing transactions. During the year ended 31 December 2018, total operating revenues of the Group amounted to
AED 1,134,790 thousand.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2018 and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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We reviewed the revenue recognition policies applied by the Group to assess their compliance with IFRS requirements. For each material operational
location with significant revenue streams, we performed substantive audit procedures which included substantive analytical procedures at the Group,
division and subsidiary level and performed testing on transactions around the year end, to assess whether revenues were recognised in the correct
accounting period.
Impairment of land and buildings
As disclosed in Note 5, as of 31 December 2018, the Group had property and equipment amounting to AED 8,207,120 thousand which mainly comprise
of land and buildings related to the operational hotels owned by the Group which amounted to AED 7,179,310 thousand. The assessment of the carrying
value of these land and buildings requires evaluating whether any indicators of impairment exist in the asset base by reference to the expected future
profitability of the cash generating units. The valuation models used to assess the carrying value of these land and buildings are based on a number of
significant assumptions relating to future cash flows and the relevant discount rates applied.
We obtained the impairment assessments prepared by management of the Group for the material assets and evaluated the appropriateness of the
significant assumptions used in the assessments such as discount rates, exit capitalization rates, disposal costs, growth rates and future cash flows in line with
the requirements of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets and assessed whether the disclosure made in the consolidated financial statements were in line with the
requirements of IAS 36. In addition, we tested the mathematical integrity of the impairment models used by management of the Group. This evaluation
was performed with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists.
Other information
Other information consists of the information included in the Chairman’s report, Management Discussion and Analysis, the Corporate Governance
Report and Annual Report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the Chairman’s Report and
Management Discussion and Analysis prior to the date of our audit report, and we expect to obtain the Corproate Governance Report and Annual Report
after the date of our auditor’s opinion. Management is responsible for the other information.

Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ABU
DHABI NATIONAL HOTELS PJSC continued

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ABU
DHABI NATIONAL HOTELS PJSC continued

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Other information continued
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements continued
•
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

•

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs and in compliance
with the applicable provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 , and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

		
2018
2017
Notes
AED’000
AED’000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property and equipment
5
8,207,120
8,290,311
Investment in an associate
7
10,743
10,743
Investment in a joint venture
8
193,927
168,980
Available for sale investments
6
22,593
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income
6
22,175
Franchise fee		
1,316
1,852

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, we report that:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 December 2018

i)

we have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii)

the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal
Law No. (2) of 2015 and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;

iii)

the Group has maintained proper books of account;

Total non-current assets		
8,435,281
8,494,479

iv)

the consolidated financial information included in the Chairman’s report is consistent with the books of account and records of the Group;

v)

investments in shares and stocks are included in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements and include purchases and investments made by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018;

Current assets
Inventories
Accounts receivable and prepayments
Cash and short term deposits

vi)

note 11 reflects the disclosures relating to material related party transactions and the terms under which they were conducted;

vii)

based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Company has
contravened, during the financial year ended 31 December 2018, any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 or of
its Memorandum and Articles of Association which would materially affect its activities or its consolidated financial position as at 31 December
2018; and

viii)

during the year, the Group made no social contributions.

Partner
Ernst & Young
Registration No 811

23,960
188,609
1,165,194

28,648
184,525
1,033,347

Total current assets		
1,377,763
1,246,520
TOTAL ASSETS		
9,813,044
9,740,999
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital
14
1,000,000
Statutory and optional reserves
15
1,000,000
Asset revaluation reserve
16
4,900,303
Foreign currency translation reserve		
(377)
Retained earnings		1,462,914
Fair value reserve		
432
Proposed dividends		
130,000

1,000,000
1,000,000
4,900,303
(412)
1,351,733
850
125,000

Total equity		

8,493,272

8,377,474

17
18

695,413
34,583

866,903
34,909

Total non-current liabilities		

729,996

901,812

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accruals
19
Term loans
17
Total current liabilities		

402,614
187,162
589,776

279,373
182,340
461,713

Non-current liabilities
Term loans
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Signed by: Raed Ahmad

9
10
13

Total liabilities		
1,319,772
1,363,525
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		
9,813,044
9,740,999

5 February 2019
Abu Dhabi

Sheikh Saif Bin Mohamed Bin Butti Hamed AlHamed
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Sheikh Ahmed Mohamed Sultan Suroor Al Dhaheri
VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

The attached notes 1 to 26 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

For the year ended 31 December 2018

		
2018
2017
Notes
AED’000
AED’000
Operating revenues
1,134,790
1,274,604
Cost of services		
(968,769)
(1,058,678)

Notes

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

Profit for the year		
241,181
247,894
Other comprehensive income:

GROSS PROFIT		166,021

215,926

General and administrative expenses
Share of profit from joint venture and associate, net
Impairment of land
Impairment of available for sale investments
Investment and other income, net
Finance costs, net

(47,024)
102,141
(6,700)
(10,000)
5,329
(11,778)

21
7&8
5
6
20
22

(51,776)
132,684
6,243
(11,991)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to the statement of profit or loss
Share of foreign operation translation reserve of joint venture

12

0.24

35

6
5

(418)
-

Net movement in fair value of investment securities
Fair value gain on revaluation of land

(276)
40

Other comprehensive loss for the year		
(383)
(1,690)

0.25

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR		
240,798

246,204

The attached notes 1 to 26 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

The attached notes 1 to 26 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(1,454)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
the statement of profit or loss

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR		
241,181
247,894
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Share capital
AED’000

Statutory
and optional
reserves
AED’000

Asset
revaluation
reserve
AED’000

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve
AED’000

Retained
earnings
AED’000

1,000,000

990,844

4,900,263

1,042

Profit for the year

-

-

-

Other comprehensive
income (loss) for the year

-

-

Total comprehensive
income for the year

-

-

Dividends paid

-

-

-

-

(22,000)

-

(100,000)

(122,000)

Proposed dividends

-

-

-

-

(125,000)

-

125,000

-

Transfer to optional
reserve

-

4,578

-

-

(4,578)

-

-

-

Transfer to statutory
reserve

-

4,578

-

-

(4,578)

-

-

-

At 31 December 2017

1,000,000

1,000,000

4,900,303

(412)

1,351,733

850

125,000

8,377,474

Balance at 1 January 2018

1,000,000

1,000,000

4,900,303

(412)

1,351,733

850

125,000

8,377,474

Profit for the year

-

-

-

-

241,181

-

-

241,181

Other comprehensive
income (loss) for the year

-

-

-

35

-

(418)

-

(383)

Total comprehensive
income for the year

-

-

-

35

241,181

(418)

-

240,798

Dividends paid

-

-

-

-

-

-

(125,000)

(125,000)

Proposed dividends

-

-

-

-

(130,000)

-

130,000

-

1,000,000

1,000,000

4,900,303

(377)

1,462,914

432

130,000

8,493,272

Balance at 1 January 2017

At 31 December 2018

Proposed
dividends
AED’000

Total
AED’000

1,259,995

Cumulative
charges in
fair value
of available
for sale
investments
AED’000
1,126

100,000

8,253,270

-

247,894

-

-

247,894

40

(1,454)

-

(276)

-

(1,690)

40

(1,454)

247,894

(276)

-

246,204

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

241,181

247,894

178,698
7,533
(132,684)
(3,500)
5,364
11,991
536
-

192,607
8,248
(102,141)
(2,779)
6,700
10,000
3,703
11,778
366
(71)

309,119
4,688
(9,448)
123,241

376,305
2,472
(115)
(27,896)

Employees’ end of service benefits paid

427,600
(7,859)

350,766
(13,354)

Net cash from operating activities

419,741

337,412

774,102
(105,031)
107,772
14,701
(1,677)
24,817
-

(220)
(89,275)
105,508
13,058
(461)
21,446
71

814,684

50,127

19,289
(185,957)
(36,808)
(125,000)

(225,198)
(33,224)
(122,000)

(328,476)
905,949
259,245
1,165,194

(380,422)
7,117
252,128
259,245

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
Share of profit from joint venture and associate, net
Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Impairment of land
Impairment of available for sale investment
Allowance for expected credit losses (doubtful debts)
Finance costs, net
Amortisation of franchise fee
Dividend income from available for sale investments
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Decrease in inventories
Increase in accounts receivables and prepayments
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accruals
Cash from operations

Cash flows from investing activities

Movement in deposits with maturity of more than three months
Purchase of property and equipment
Dividend received from a joint venture
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment
Movement in advances to contractors for assets under construction
Interest received
Dividend received from available for sale investments
Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Loan drawdown during the year
Loans repaid during the year
Interest paid during the year
Dividends paid during the year
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (note 13)

The attached notes 1 to 26 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2018

31 December 2018

GENERAL INFORMATION
Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC (“the Company”), a public shareholding company, was incorporated in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates (“UAE”) on
13 April 1975 by Law No. (3) as amended by Law No. (5) of 1978, to own and manage hotels and to undertake other related business. The Company’s shares
are listed on Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 46806, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates.
The Company owns seven hotels within the UAE (Hilton International Abu Dhabi, Hilton International Al Ain, Abu Dhabi Sheraton Hotel, Le Meridien Abu Dhabi,
Sofitel Dubai, Park Hyatt Abu Dhabi and Ritz Carlton Abu Dhabi Grand Canal) that are managed by international hotel operating companies or operating under
a franchise agreement. The Company also manages for its own account one hotel property namely the Al Diar Capital Hotel under a lease agreement with the
property owner. The Company also comprises a hotels’ management division, a retail division, a tourism services division, a restaurant division and has investments
in the following entities as of 31 December 2018 and 2017:
Name
Al Ghazal Transport (“the Subsidiary”)
Abu Dhabi National Hotels Compass Middle East LLC (“the Joint Venture”)
Overseas Tourist Investment Company Limited (“the Associate”)

Country of operation
United Arab Emirates
Gulf and the Middle East
Jersey, Channel Islands

Principal activity
Transport Services
Catering and Contract Services
Tourist Complexes

Interest (%)
100.00
51.00
38.46

The Company and its subsidiary constitute the Group. The Company also manages and supervises other hotels for the account of other parties.
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors
on 5 February 2019.
2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION continued

Basis of consolidation continued
Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. The interests of non-controlling shareholders may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Group.
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the following new and amended IFRS effective as of 1 January
2018 which did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group:

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for the re-measurement of certain financial instruments at fair
value and revaluation of land.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in UAE Dirhams (“AED”), which is the functional currency of the Group and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (AED ‘000) except when otherwise indicated.
Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and applicable requirements of laws of the United Arab Emirates.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company, including divisions and hotels, wholly owned subsidiary Al Ghazal
Transport (the “Subsidiary”) and joint venture ADNH Compass, all drawn up to 31 December each year.
The Subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continues to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.
The financial statements of the Subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. All significant
intra-group balances, transactions, and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers;
IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations;
Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property;
Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions;
Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Clarification that measuring investees at fair value through profit or loss is an
investment-by-investment choice; and
Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards - Deletion of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge accounting.
Classification and measurement of financial assets
Except for certain trade receivables, an entity initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs.
Under IFRS 9, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, amortised cost, or fair value through OCI. The classification is based
on two criteria: the Group’s business model for managing the assets; and whether the instruments’ contractual cash flows represent ‘solely payments of principal
and interest’ on the principal amount outstanding.
Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC
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2.2

2.2

31 December 2018

31 December 2018

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments continued
Classification and measurement of financial assets continued
The assessment of the Group’s business model was made as of the date of initial application, 1 January 2018, and then applied retrospectively to those financial
assets that were not derecognised before 1 January 2018. The assessment of whether contractual cash flows on debt instruments are solely comprised of principal
and interest was made based on the facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition of the assets.
On adoption of IFRS 9, the Group re-classified investments previously reported as available for sale investments amounting to AED 22,593 thousand as investments
carried at fair value through other comprehensive income in accordance with the requirements of the standard.
The Group has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss. There are no changes in classification and measurement for the Group’s
financial liabilities.
Impairment of financial assets
The impairment requirements are based on an expected credit loss (ECL) model that replaces the IAS 39 incurred loss model. The ECL model applies to debt
instruments accounted for at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, most loan commitments, financial guarantee contracts, contract assets under IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and lease receivables under IAS 17 Leases or IFRS 16 Leases.
Entities are generally required to recognise 12-month ECL on initial recognition (or when the commitment or guarantee was entered into) and thereafter as long
as there is no significant deterioration in credit risk. However, if there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an individual or collective basis, then entities
are required to recognise lifetime ECL. For trade receivables, a simplified approach is applied whereby the lifetime ECL are always recognised.
The Group applied ECL model under IFRS 9 for the first time in the current year which did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.
Hedge accounting
Hedge effectiveness testing is prospective, without the 80% to 125% bright line test in IAS 39, and, depending on the hedge complexity, will often be qualitative.
A risk component of a financial or non-financial instrument may be designated as the hedged item if the risk component is separately identifiable and reliably
measureable.
The time value of an option, any forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis spread can be excluded from the hedging instrument
designation and can be accounted for as costs of hedging. More designations of groups of items as the hedged item are possible, including layer designations and
some net positions.
The application of IFRS 9 has had no impact on the hedge accounting as the Group does not have any hedge instruments.
Transition impact: In line with the IFRS 9 transition provisions, the Group has elected to record any adjustment to its opening 1 January 2018 retained earnings to
reflect the application of the new requirements of impairment, classification and measurement at the date of adoption without restating comparative information.
As stated above, the adoption of IFRS 9 did not have any impact on the opening retained earnings of the Group.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related Interpretations and it applies to all revenue arising from contracts with customers,
unless those contracts are in the scope of other standards. The new standard establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The standard requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when
applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and
the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. Following an analysis of its various revenue arrangements, the Group concluded that the adoption of IFRS 15 did
not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
Transition impact: In line with the IFRS 15 transition provisions, the Group utilized the modified retrospective method whereby any cumulative effect of initially
applying IFRS 15 is recorded as an adjustment to its opening 1 January 2018 retained earnings without restating comparative information. As stated above, the
adoption of IFRS 15 did not have any impact on the opening retained earnings of the Group.
3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Interest in a joint venture
Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor.
The Company has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement and determined it to be a joint venture.
Joint ventures are accounted using the equity method. Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognized at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Investment in an associate
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but has no control or joint control over those policies.
The results and assets and liabilities of the associate are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for under IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are carried in the statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of
the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in associate) are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

31 December 2018

31 December 2018

Investment in an associate continued
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Employee benefits
An accrual is made for estimated liability for employees’ entitlement to annual leave and leave passage as a result of services rendered by eligible employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Where the Group transacts with an associate, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group interest in the relevant associate.

Provision is also made for the full amount of end of service benefits due to employees in accordance with the Group’s policy, which is at least equal to the benefits
payable in accordance with UAE Labour Law, for their period of service up to the end of the reporting period. The accrual relating to annual leave and leave
passage is classified as a current liability, while the provision relating to end of service benefits is classified as a non-current liability.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method and comprises invoiced cost, freight
and other charges incurred in bringing inventory to its present location and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated
costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Franchise fee
Expenditure on franchise fee is capitalised and amortised using the straight line method over a period of 10 years which reflects the term of the franchise
agreements. Franchise fee is reviewed for impairment whenever the events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific loans pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period during which they are incurred.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied and services rendered,
stated net of allowances and rebates. The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group bases its
estimate of return on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
Operating revenue
Hotel operating revenue from room rentals, food, beverage and other ancillary services is recognised when rooms are rented, goods are sold and services are
rendered, respectively. Amounts recognised are net of discounts and municipality fees where applicable.
Transport and retail services’ operating revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied or services rendered, stated net of discounts and returns.
Interest income
Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues using the effective interest method, under which the rate used exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
Dividends
Dividend income from investments is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment is established.
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Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
Foreign currencies
For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements UAE Dirhams (AED) is the functional and the presentation currency of the Group.
Transactions in currencies other than AED (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.
The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

31 December 2018

31 December 2018

Leases continued
The Group as a lessee
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

Property and equipment continued
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year-end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Leases, where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in payables.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the consolidated statement of income over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property and equipment acquired under finance lease is depreciated over the shorter of the
useful life of the asset and the lease term. The Group does not have any assets on finance leases.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method (EIR)
amortisation process.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
Assets under construction are stated at cost and are not depreciated. When commissioned, assets under construction are transferred to the appropriate property
and equipment asset category and depreciated in accordance with the Group’s policies.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in finance cost in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance expenses are charged
to the profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Land is measured at fair value less impairment losses recognised after the date of the revaluation. Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the
fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Any revaluation surplus is credited to the assets revaluation reserve included in the equity section of the consolidated statement of financial position, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to the extent
that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation reserve.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment of non-financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent that it reverses previously recorded revaluation gains.

Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other property and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the assets’ cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Buildings
Mechanical, electrical and plumbing
Furniture, fixtures and operating equipment
Motor vehicles

34

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.5% - 10%
4% - 10%
8% - 50%
17% - 33%
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

31 December 2018

31 December 2018

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair
value through profit or loss.
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. The Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs.
In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The
Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
a)
b)
c)
d)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments, cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables)
Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.
Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.
ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Group has the following financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents which include cash on hand and deposits held at call with banks with original maturities of three months or less, are classified as financial
assets at amortised cost.
Financial assets at amortised cost
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
a)
b)

Financial assets continued
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)
Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they
meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-byinstrument basis.

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

3.2

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE

31 December 2018

31 December 2018

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

The following new standards/ amendments to standards which were issued up to 31 December 2018 and are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2018
have not been applied while preparing these consolidated financial statements. The Group does not expect that the adoption of these standards/amendments will
have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements:

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables and borrowings of contractual liabilities are classified as ‘financial liabilities’ and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs,
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis, except for short
term liabilities when the recognition of interest is immaterial.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments such as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income at fair value at each consolidated statement
of financial position date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:
•
•

Annual improvements: 2015 – 2017 Cycle
•
IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint operation
•
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements - Previously held Interests in a joint operation
•
IAS 12 Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified as equity
•
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
Estimated impact of IFRS 16
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019)
IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating LeasesIncentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single
on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under IAS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees – leases of ’lowvalue’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will be also required to re-measure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the re-measurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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IFRS 16 Leases
IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more
extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.
IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, but not before an entity applies IFRS 15. A lessee can
choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.
The Group plans to adopt IFRS 16 on the required effective date. The Group is currently in the process of assessing the potential impact of IFRS 16 on its
consolidated financial statements.
Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC
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31 December 2018

31 December 2018

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
While applying the accounting policies as stated in Note 3, management of the Group has made certain judgments, estimates and assumptions that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the period of the revision in which
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
Key sources of estimation of uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Useful lives of property and equipment
The management determines the estimated useful lives of its property and equipment for calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering the
expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and the future depreciation charge would
be adjusted where management believes that the useful lives differ from previous estimates.
Impairment assessment of property and equipment
Properties classified under property and equipment are assessed for impairment based on the assessment of cash flows on individual cash-generating units when
there is an indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. Cash flows are determined with reference to recent market conditions, prices existing at
the end of the reporting period, contractual agreements and estimations over the useful lives of the assets and discounted using a range of discounting rates that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. The net present values are compared to the carrying amounts
to assess any probable impairment. During the year, the Group carried out a review of recoverable amounts of its material properties, determining the basis of
their value in use by reference to the discounted cash flow method using yield of 6% and discount rate of 9%.
Impairment of investment securities
The Group classifies certain assets as investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (2017: available for sale investments) and recognises
movements in their fair value in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income. When the fair value declines, management makes assumptions
about the decline in value to determine whether it is an impairment that should be recognised in profit or loss. At 31 December 2018 impairment losses of AED
Nil (2017: AED 10,000 thousand) have been recognised for investment securities and the carrying amount of investment securities was AED 22,176 thousand
(2017: AED 22,593 thousand).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTY continued

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty continued
Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating etc.).
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.
The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.
At the reporting date, gross trade receivables were AED 114,870 thousand (2017: AED 100,966 thousand) and the provision for expected credit losses was AED
10,637 thousand (2017: provision for doubtful debts of AED 8,169 thousand). Any difference between the amounts actually collected in future periods and the
amounts expected to be received will be recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Critical accounting judgments in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, management has made the following judgments that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt with above).
Joint arrangement
The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint arrangement. The Group has joint control over this arrangement as under the contractual agreements,
unanimous consent is required from all parties to the agreements for all relevant activities. The Group’s joint arrangement provides the Group and the parties to
the agreements with rights to the net assets. Therefore, this arrangement is classified as a joint venture.
5

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment at net carrying value
Advances to contractors for assets under construction

Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC

31 December
2018
AED’000

31 December
2017
AED’000

8,194,848
12,272

8,279,716
10,595

8,207,120

8,290,311
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5
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT continued
Movement of the property and equipment during the year is as follows:

5

31 December 2018

Land and building
AED’000

Cost:
At 1 January 2017
Additions
Fair value gain on revaluation of land
Disposals
At 31 December 2017
At 1 January 2018
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
At 31 December 2018
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
At 1 January 2017
Charge for the year
Disposals
Impairment loss
At 31 December 2017
At 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Disposals
At 31 December 2018
Net book value:
At 31 December 2018
At 31 December 2017

Mechanical,
electrical and
plumbing
AED’000

31 December 2018

Furniture,
fixture and
operating
equipment
AED’000

Motor vehicles
AED’000

Construction
in progress
AED’000

Total
AED’000

996,682
2,147
-

1,177,998
19,185
-

281,674
49,629
-

41,778
18,136
-

10,651,068
89,275
40

8,153,154
8,153,154
303
(63)
8,153,394

(28)
998,801
998,801
243
999,044

(231)
1,196,952
1,196,952
10,300
786
(3,470)
1,204,568

(45,088)
286,215
286,215
42,638
(45,743)
283,110

59,914
59,914
51,547
(786)
110,675

(45,347)
10,695,036
10,695,036
105,031
(49,276)
10,750,791

850,209
58,987
6,700
915,896
915,896
58,251
(63)
974,084

390,223
31,110
(28)
421,305
421,305
30,221
451,526

896,319
54,845
(181)
950,983
950,983
43,400
(3,470)
990,913

114,330
47,665
(34,859)
127,136
127,136
46,826
(34,542)
139,420

-

2,251,081
192,607
(35,068)
6,700
2,415,320
2,415,320
178,698
(38,075)
2,555,943

7,179,310
7,237,258

547,518
577,496

213,655
245,969

143,690
159,079

110,675
59,914

8,194,848
8,279,716

Cost of services
General and administrative expenses

177,411
1,287

2017
AED’000
191,653
954

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group transferred 786 thousand (2017: AED Nil) from construction in progress to various property and equipment
categories. Construction in progress mainly represents capital expenditure on the additions and to hotel properties.
Management undertakes an annual review of all its properties with the view of determining whether there are any indicators of impairment based on an assessment
of any internal or external factors on the recoverable amount of the properties. The recoverable amount of material assets has been determined on the basis of
their value in use by reference to the discounted cash flow method using yield of 6.4% and a discount rate of 9.4%. Based on management’s assessment, there is
no additional impairment charges to be recognized on the properties as of 31 December 2018.
Bank borrowings are secured through hotel properties with a value of AED 2.95 billion (2017: AED 3.02 billion) (Note 17).
Leased land
The Company leases from the Abu Dhabi Municipality four parcels of land, two of which have leasehold improvements with an aggregate book value of AED
17.03 million as at 31 December 2018 (2017: AED 18.4 million). The Joint venture uses two parcels of lands, which has leasehold improvements with an aggregate
book value of AED 9.35 million as of 31 December 2018 (2017: AED 10.5 million) and accordingly, bears the annual rental charge. The rental of these parcels
of land is renewed on an annual basis.
Construction in progress
Construction in progress mainly represents capital expenditure on additions and extensions to hotel properties.
6

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Investment securities were classified in accordance with IFRS 9 (2017: in accordance with IAS 39) as follows:
2018
2017
AED’000
AED’000
Equity investments
At fair value through other comprehensive income
22,175
Available for sale
22,593
Closing fair value

178,698
192,607
Included in land and buildings is land stated at revalued amount of AED 5,385,963 thousand at 31 December 2018 (2017: AED 5,385,963 thousand). The Group
engaged an accredited independent valuer, to determine the fair value of its land as at 31 December 2017. An impairment charge for AED Nil thousand (2017:
AED 6,700 thousand) was recorded against a plot of land held by the Group as a result of the revaluation as at 31 December 2017. In addition, a revaluation gain
of AED nil (2017: AED 40 thousand) was recorded against another plot of land held by the Group as a result of the revaluation.

42

Fair value is determined by reference to market based evidence. This means that valuations performed by the valuer are based on active market prices, adjusted
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific property. The date of the revaluations was 22 October 2017.
If land was measured using the cost model, the carrying amounts would be AED 485,659 thousand (2017: AED 485,659 thousand).

8,152,936
178
40

The depreciation charge has been allocated in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:
2018
AED’000

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT continued

Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC

Quoted equity investments
Opening fair value
Decrease in fair value
Closing fair value
Unquoted equity investment
Total investment securities

Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC

22,175
1,414
(418)
996
21,179
22,175

22,593
1,690
(276)
1,414
21,179
22,593
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6

8

INVESTMENT SECURITIES continued

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of its interest in the joint venture:

The investments in quoted equities are listed in the Abu Dhabi Securities Market.
The unquoted equity investment represents the Group’s equity interest of 10.224% (31 December 2017: 10.224%) in Abu Dhabi Tourism Investment Company
(“ADTIC”).
ADTIC is registered in Egypt as a private joint stock company. Its objectives are mainly to invest in tourist projects in Egypt. ADTIC owns three hotels in operation
under a management agreement with an international hotel operator and holds an equity share in a private shareholding company in Egypt which is engaged in
the construction of a tourist resort in Egypt.
During 2017, management performed an impairment analysis on its investment in ADTIC which resulted in recording an impairment charge of AED 10,000
thousand).
7

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

At 1 January
Share of results in associate

10,743
-

10,743
-

At 31 December

10,743

10,743

2017
AED’000
345,846
217,722
(211,016)
(14,593)

Closing net assets

387,854

337,959

Share of interest in joint venture at 50%

193,927

168,980

Carrying value

193,927

168,980

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

44,248
425,696
745,891
(124,512)
(569,442)
(131,324)
(2,703)

54,422
295,351
748,928
(175,272)
(461,299)
(123,355)
(816)

387,854

337,959

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

2,310,790
(1,930,604)
(22,430)
(89,798)
3,514
(6,104)

2,101,713
(1,772,752)
(27,524)
(78,330)
(3,031)
(2,354)

Opening net assets
Profit for the year
Dividend
Foreign exchange differences

Statement of financial position
Non-current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets (excluding cash)
Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables)
Other current liabilities (including trade payables)
Other non-current liabilities
Non-controlling interests
Net assets

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

The Group has a 51% equity interest with equal voting power in Abu Dhabi National Hotels Compass Middle East LLC (ADNH Compass), a joint arrangement
with Compass Group International BV established in Abu Dhabi on 3 October 2000. ADNH Compass provides catering, laundry, housekeeping and facility
management and services to third parties.
2018
2017
AED’000
AED’000
At 1 January
Share of profit for the year
Change in foreign currency
Dividend received from joint venture
At 31 December

44

2018
AED’000
337,959
265,368
(215,297)
(176)

The joint venture’s summarised financial information is as follows:

The Group has a 38.46% interest in equity share capital of Overseas Tourist Investment Company Limited (“OTIC”), which is incorporated in Jersey, Channel Island
and participates in tourist complexes and operates in Morocco. The Group’s investment in associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. OTIC
is a private company and there is no quoted market price available for its shares. There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the associate.

8

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE continued

168,980
132,684
35
(107,772)

173,801
102,141
(1,454)
(105,508)

193,927

168,980

Statement of profit or loss
Income
Expenses
Depreciation
Other expenses
Interest (expense) income, net
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

265,368

217,722

The Group received cash dividends from its joint venture amounting to AED 107.8 million during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: AED 105.5 million).
At 31 December 2018, the joint venture had bank guarantees, mostly performance bonds, amounting to AED 286 million (2017: AED 254 million).
Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC
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9

31 December 2018

INVENTORIES

Finished goods and other inventory items

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

23,960

28,648

10

As of 31 December 2018, the analysis of trade receivables including those that were past due and not impaired is as follows:
2018
2017
AED’000
AED’000

Inventories comprise mainly of beverages and food as well as engineering and operating supplies. The cost of inventories is recognised as an expense when
inventory items are consumed.
10

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables
Less: allowance for expected credit losses
(IAS 39: provision for doubtful debts)

Due from related parties (note 11)
Other receivables and prepayments

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

114,870

100,966

Neither past due nor impaired

41,941

36,420

Past due but not impaired
Due for 30 to 60 days
Due for 61 to 90 days
Due for 91 to 120 days
Due for more than 120 days

23,611
14,102
8,711
15,868

22,702
11,473
6,304
15,898

62,292

56,377

104,233

92,797

(10,637)

(8,169)

104,233

92,797

Below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade receivables:

36,001
48,375

33,827
57,901

						
More than
			30-60
61-90
91-120
120
Total
Current
days
days
days
days
AED
AED
AED
AED
AED
AED

188,609

184,525

At 31 December 2018, accrued interest receivable of AED 1.3 million (2017: AED 6.1 million) on bank deposits is included in other receivables. Trade receivables
are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-90 days’ terms.
As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables of AED 10.6 million (2017: AED 8.2 million) were impaired and fully provided for. Movements in the allowance for
expected credit losses (2017: allowance for doubtful debts) were as follows:
2018
AED’000
IFRS 9

2017
AED’000
IAS 39

At 1 January
Provision for the year
Reversal during the year
Written off during the year

8,169
16,522
(11,158)
(2,896)

6,735
10,268
(6,565)
(2,269)

At 31 December

10,637

8,169

31 December 2018
Expected credit loss rate		
Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default
114,870
Expected credit loss

10,637

31 December 2017
Expected credit loss rate		
Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default
100,966
Expected credit loss

8,169

2.1%

4.3%

6.5%

10.4%

29.6%

42,845

24,685

15,089

9,717

22,534

904

1,074

987

1,006

6,666

2.1%

4.7%

7.3%

11.9%

22.0%

37,209

23,829

12,378

7,158

20,392

789

1,127

905

854

4,494

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in the UAE Dirham and approximate their fair value as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of the receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.
11

The creation and release of the provision for expected credit losses is disclosed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss under ‘general and administrative
expenses’ (note 21). Amounts charged to the provision account are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. The other
classes within accounts receivables and prepayments do not contain impaired assets.
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RELATED PARTIES

Related parties represent the Joint Venture, the Associate, managed hotels, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and entities
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management.
Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC
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31 December 2018

11

31 December 2018

RELATED PARTIES continued

12

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The sales to and services from related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free and settlement
occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through
examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
Balances with related parties reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:
2018
AED’000
Due from related parties (note 10)
Due to related parties (note 19)

2017
AED’000

36,001

33,827

390

747

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted
for the effects of dilutive instruments.
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the earnings per share computations:
2018
Profit attributable to owners of the Company (AED’000)
Weighted average number of shares in issue (’000)

2017

241,181

247,894

1,000,000

1,000,000

Basic and diluted earnings per share (AED)
0.24
0.25
The Group has not issued any instruments, which would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised.

Significant transactions with related parties included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are as follows:
2018
2017
AED’000
AED’000

13

Management fees received

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following:
2018
2017
AED’000
AED’000

3,496

3,807

46,277

41,375

Sales of goods and other services to other related parties

3,258

3,034

Purchase of goods and services

2,871

3,889

Sales of goods and services to the Joint Venture

Amounts owed by the Joint Venture (included in due from related parties)
Amounts owed to Joint Venture (included in due to related parties)

31,998

28,493

390

739

Cash at bank and on hand
Short term deposits

240

357

Amounts owed by the Associate

959

676

19,387
1,357

22,116
1,717

251,180
782,167

Less: short-term deposits with maturity over three months

1,165,194
-

1,033,347
(774,102)

Cash and cash equivalents

1,165,194

259,245

14

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised, issued and fully paid
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of AED 1 each

20,744
23,833
Board remuneration
12,440
10,840
As of 31 December 2018, there were no loans extended to the Directors of the Company (2017: AED Nil).
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999,565
165,629

Bank deposits carry an interest rate ranging from 1% to 3.75% per annum (2017: 0.2% to 3.5% per annum).

Associate - Overseas Tourist Investment Company Limited
Administration charges and other charges paid on behalf of OTIC

Key management compensation
Short term benefits
Employees’ end of service benefits

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

1,000,000

1,000,000

At the Annual General Meeting held on 27 February 2018, the Shareholders approved a cash dividend of AED 0.125 per share totaling AED 125 million.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board of Directors propose a cash dividend of AED 0.130 per share amounting to AED 130 million. The cash dividend
is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC
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15

31 December 2018

STATUTORY AND OPTIONAL RESERVES

Statutory reserve
In accordance with the UAE Federal Law no. (2) of 2015 and Article 60 of the Company’s Articles of Association, as amended, 10% of the profit for the year is to
be transferred to a statutory reserve until such reserve reaches 50% of the Company’s issued and fully paid up capital. This reserve is not available for distribution.
No transfers were made in the current year (2017: AED 4,578 thousand) as the reserve has reached 50% of the Company’s issued and fully paid up capital.
Optional reserve
In accordance with the Company’s previous Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for the year is to be transferred to a legal reserve until such reserve reaches
50% of the Company’s issued and fully paid up capital, or until a resolution is taken by the Ordinary General Assembly of the shareholders to cease transfer to
this reserve.
As per Article 59 of the Company’s Articles of Association, as amended, a percentage fixed by the Board of Directors shall be deducted from the annual profits in
order to amortise the Company’s assets or compensate their depreciation. This reserve is to be used at the discretion of the General Assembly of the shareholders.
The percentage has been determined to be 10%. No transfers were made in the current year (2017: AED 4,578 thousand) as the reserve has reached 50% of the
Company’s issued and fully paid up capital.
16

TERM LOANS
2018
AED’000

Term loans with commercial banks:
Due in less than one year – current liability
Due in more than one year – non-current liability

2017
AED’000

187,162
695,413

182,340
866,903

(b)

On 17 January 2016, the Group obtained a secured term loan facility from a local bank amounting to AED 320 million to refinance the then existing
AED 240 million loan agreement with another local bank and to finance the renovation activities of three existing hotels. As at 31 December 2018, the
Company had drawn down the entire facility. The loan is repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments of AED 16 million starting from 30 June 2016 and
ending in December 2021. The collateral constitutes a mortgage on a hotel property owned by the Group. The facility carries a variable annual rate plus
a spread. The carrying amount as at 31 December 2018 was AED 156 million (31 December 2017: AED 220 million).
During 2016, the Group paid AED 800,000 as processing fees for the loan and as at 31 December 2018, the Group has an unamortised prepaid loan
arrangement fee of AED 346,667 (31 December 2017: AED 506,667) related to this and is netted off from the loan balance.

(c)

On 5 March 2018, Al Ghazal Transport, a subsidiary, obtained a term loan facility from a local bank amounting to AED 50 million to finance the purchase
of vehicles. The facility carries a variable interest rate plus as spread. The loan is repayable in 16 semi-annual instalments commencing from the date of
each withdrawal. The collateral constitutes a mortgage on the assets purchased from the loan proceeds. The carrying amount as at 31 December 2018
was AED 15.7 million (31 December 2017: AED Nil).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in UAE Dirhams.
There have been no defaults or breach of loan covenants during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

882,575

1,049,243

18

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has an unamortised prepaid loan arrangement fee of AED 8.75 million (31 December 2017: AED 10.25 million)
related to this facility and is netted off from the loan balance.
Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS
2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

At 1 January
Charge for the year
Paid during the year

34,909
7,533
(7,859)

40,015
8,248
(13,354)

At 31 December

34,583

34,909

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

Trade payables
Due to related parties (note 11)
Accrued liabilities
Dividend payable
Directors’ remuneration

331,153
390
49,655
12,009
9,407

191,840
747
67,016
11,875
7,895

Total

402,614

279,373

19

The term loans comprise the following:
(a)
On 2 October 2014, the Company obtained a secured term loan facility from a local bank amounting to AED 1.2 billion to refinance the then existing
AED 1.5 billion loan agreement with a consortium of four banks. Consequently, the Company settled its outstanding term loan as well as the associated
interest rate swap amounting to AED 750 million and AED 49 million, respectively, in October 2014. The new loan is repayable in 20 equal half yearly
instalments of AED 60 million starting from April 2015 and ending in October 2024. Collateral constitutes a mortgage on a hotel property owned by the
Company. The facility carries a variable annual interest rate plus a spread. The carrying amount of the loan as at 31 December 2018 was AED 720 million
(31 December 2017: AED 840 million).
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TERM LOANS continued

ASSET REVALUATION RESERVE

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increases in the fair value of land and decreases to the extent that such decrease relates to an increase on the same
asset previously recognised in equity.
17

17

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 60 days of the invoice date. Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average
term of six months with the exception of retentions payable, if any. Accrued liabilities include retentions payable amounting to AED 54.5 million (2017: AED 56.1
million). The carrying amount of these retentions payable approximates their fair value as at reporting date.
Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC
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22

31 December 2018

31 December 2018

INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME

Gain on sale of property and equipment
Dividend income from quoted investments
Other income, net

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

3,500
2,743

2,779
71
2,479

6,243

5,329

FINANCE COSTS, NET
2018
AED’000

Interest income on bank deposits
Interest expense on bank loans

2017
AED’000

(24,817)
36,808

(21,446)
33,224

11,991

11,778

Interest was paid during the year at rates ranging from 2.7% to 3.8% (2017: 2.16% to 3.2%).
21

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Staff costs
Provision for expected credit losses (2017: doubtful debts)
Directors’ remuneration
Depreciation
Other expenses

23
2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

19,099
5,346
10,200
1,287
15,844

21,680
3,703
10,840
954
9,847

51,776

47,024

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The primary segment reporting format is determined to be operating segments as the Group’s risks and rates of return are affected predominantly by differences in
the products and services produced. The operating segments are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services provided,
with each segment representing a strategic operating unit that offers different products and serves different markets.
Operating segments
For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into four major operating segments. These segments are the basis on which the Group reports its
primary segmental information. These are:

The remuneration of the Board of Directors for the year ended 31 December 2018 was AED 10.2 million (2017: AED 10.8 million), which is subject to approval
by the Shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Assembly.

−
−
−
−

For the year ended 31 December 2018, other expenses include social contributions made to the following beneficiaries:

Individual hotels, retail and transportation segments’ performance is measured based on profit or loss.

Sandooq Al-Watan

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

-

3,000

-

3,000

Hotels
Retail services
Transport services
Holding - responsible for managing investments held by the Group, development of hotels and general coordination of Group activities

Information regarding these segments is presented below:

The contribution noted does not exceed the 2% of the average profits of the Group during the two financial year ends preceding the year of the contribution.

52

Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC

Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC

53

Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC

Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23

23

31 December 2018

31 December 2018

SEGMENT INFORMATION continued
Hotels
AED’000

Retail services
AED’000

Transport
services
AED’000

Holding
Elimination
company
entries AED’000
AED’000

Total
AED’000

Cost of services

731,092

145,871

287,262

-

(29,435)

1,134,790

Total assets
Total liabilities

(624,048)

(93,615)

(280,051)

-

28,945

(968,769)

107,044

52,256

7,211

-

(490)

166,021

At 31 December 2017

(3,699)

-

(1,665)

(46,459)

47

(51,776)

Total assets

Share of profit from joint venture and associate, net

-

-

-

132,684

-

132,684

Total liabilities

Investment and other income, net

-

150

3,244

3,844

(995)

6,243

Finance costs, net

-

-

(584)

(11,612)

205

(11,991)

Profit for the year

103,345

52,406

8,206

78,457

(1,233)

241,181

815,349

193,559

296,491

-

(30,795)

1,274,604

(697,426)

(112,923)

(279,462)

-

31,133

(1,058,678)

117,923

80,636

17,029

-

338

215,926

(951)

-

(1,122)

(45,581)

630

(47,024)

Gross profit
General and administrative expenses

Hotels
AED’000

Retail services
AED’000

Transport services
AED’000

Holding company
AED’000

Elimination entries
AED’000

Total
AED’000

8,168,203

41,282

245,606

1,360,434

(2,481)

9,813,044

146,972

20,126

72,401

1,083,434

(3,161)

1,319,772

8,218,540

52,351

235,541

1,236,188

(1,621)

9,740,999

151,735

21,188

50,543

1,141,962

(1,903)

1,363,525

At 31 December 2018

Year ended 31 December 2018
Revenues

SEGMENT INFORMATION continued

Year ended 31 December 2017
Revenues
Cost of services
Gross profit
General and administrative expenses

54

Share of profit from joint venture and associate, net

-

-

-

102,141

-

102,141

Investment and other income, net

-

547

2,780

3,642

(1,640)

5,329

Impairment of land

-

-

-

(6,700)

-

(6,700)

Impairment of available for sale investment

-

-

-

(10,000)

-

(10,000)

Finance costs, net

-

-

(768)

(11,181)

171

(11,778)

Profit for the year

116,972

81,183

17,919

32,321

(501)

247,894

Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC

The amounts provided by the management with respect to the total assets and liabilities are measured in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial
statements. Segment assets are allocated based on operations of the segment.
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31 December 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

Financial risk management objectives
The Group is exposed to the following risks related to financial instruments – market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and cash flow risk and fair value
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of the financial markets and seeks to
optimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.

Market risk management
Foreign exchange risk
The Group does not have any significant exposure to currency risk as most of its monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in UAE Dirhams or in US Dollars,
the latter being pegged to the UAE Dirham.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and short term deposits. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the statement of financial position plus
net debt.
The gearing ratios at the year-end was as follows:
31 December
31 December
2018
2017
AED’000
AED’000
Debt
Cash and short term deposits (note 13)
Net debt

882,575
(1,165,194)
(282,619)

1,049,243
(1,033,347)

8,493,272

8,377,474

Capital

8,210,653

8,393,370

-

0.19%

Gearing ratio

The Group’s investments in equity of other entities that are publicly trade are included in the Abu Dhabi Securities Market Index.

15,896

Equity

The following table summarises the impact of increases/decrease of the equity price index on the Group’s equity. The analysis is based on the assumption that
the equity index had increased/decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant and all the Group’s equity instruments moved according to the historical
correlation with the index:

Market index
Abu Dhabi Securities Market Index

Financial instruments by category
2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

22,175

22,593

Financial assets at amortised cost:
Accounts receivable
Cash and short term deposits

140,234
1,165,194

126,624
1,033,347

Total financial assets

1,327,603

1,182,564

Accounts payable and accruals
Term loans
Total financial liabilities

402,614
882,575
1,285,189

279,373
1,049,243
1,328,616

Investment securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income (2017: available for sale)

56

Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Group and classified on the consolidated statement of financial position
as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (2017: available for sale). The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk. To manage its
price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set
by the Group management.

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

50

71

Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/losses on equity securities classified as financial assets at fair value thorough other
comprehensive income (2017: available for sale).
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings (term loans). Term loans issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash held at variable rates. Term loans issued at fixed rates (if any) expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group analyses
its interest rate exposure on dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions, alternative financing
and hedging.
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations with floating interest rates and
bank deposits. At 31 December 2018, if interest rates on borrowings had been 10 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit for the
year would have been AED 1.2 million (2017: AED 1.05 million) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
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31 December 2018

31 December 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Credit risk management
Credit risk is managed on Group basis, except for credit risk relating to accounts receivables balances. Each local entity is responsible for managing and analysing the
credit risk for each of their new clients before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents
and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. Individual
risk limits are based on management’s assessment on a case by case basis. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. The Group’s policy is to place cash
and cash equivalents and short terms deposits with reputable banks and financial institutions.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group. There are policies in place to ensure that services are rendered to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount
of these instruments.
Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its funding requirements. The maturity profile of financial liabilities is monitored by management to
ensure adequate liquidity is maintained.
Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities of the Group and aggregated by the Group Finance. The Group finance monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed
borrowing facilities at all times so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants on any of its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into
consideration the Group’s debts financing plans, covenant compliance and compliance with internal consolidation statement of financial position targets.
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:
		
On demand
AED’000

Less than
3 months
AED’000

3 to 12
months
AED’000

1 to 5
years
AED’000

More than
5 years
AED’000

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s management considers that the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities approximates to their carrying amounts as stated in the consolidated
financial statements.
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value into Levels 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable.
•

Level 1 – fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

•

Level 2 – fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

•

Level 3 – fair value measurement are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs). Management has determined the fair value of these unquoted investments by applying an appropriate risk adjusted
liquidity discount on the net assets of the investee companies.

Investment securities
31 December 2018
31 December 2017

Level 1
AED’000

Level 2
AED’000

Level 3
AED’000

Total
AED’000

996

-

21,179

22,175

1,414

-

21,179

22,593

During the period, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measurements.
Total
AED’000
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

(a)

Bank guarantees

At 31 December 2018
Term loans
Accounts payable and accruals

41,225

26,445
118,449

195,732
242,940

761,802
-

-

983,979
402,614

Total

41,225

144,894

438,672

761,802

-

1,386,593

At 31 December 2017
Term loans
Accounts payable and accruals

-

24,245
82,989

189,137
196,384

820,666
-

120,753
-

1,154,801
279,373

(b)

Total

-

107,234

385,521

820,666

120,753

1,434,174

The estimated capital expenditure contracted for at 31 December 2018 amounts to AED 40.9 million (2017: AED 40.6 million).
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Bank guarantees – within one year

Abu Dhabi National Hotels Company PJSC

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

33,135

38,417

Capital commitments
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS continued

(c)

Operating lease commitments

For the year 31 December 2018, the Group had a non-cancellable operating lease agreement relating to Al Diar Capital which will expire in 2022. Minimum lease
rentals are payable as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
More than five years
Total operating lease expenditure contracted for
at the reporting date

2018
AED’000

2017
AED’000

5,000
12,917
-

5,000
17,917
-

17,917

22,917

Total lease expense for the year amounted to AED 5 million (2017: AED 5 million).
(d)

Investment commitments

On 26 November 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a third party to purchase five hotel properties in Dubai, United Arab Emirates.
The finalization of the sale is subject to a number of conditions and the transaction is expected to close during the first quarter of 2019. The acquisition cost is
AED 2.2 billion out of which AED 1.6 billion will be financed via a bank loan.
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